
AGENDA 

COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

May 2, 2012 – 7:00 PM 
 

CCMC’S core purpose is to deliver quality health care locally. 
President 
David Allison 
 term expires 03/12 

 
Vice-President 
EJ Cheshier 
 term expires 08/13 

 
Secretary 
David Reggiani 
 term expires 08/12 

 
Board Members 
Bret Bradfford 
 term expires 08/134 

Jim Kasch 
 term expires 08/12 

Keith van den Broek 
 term expires 08/12 

NVE Tribal Council - Vacant 
  
Administrator 
Theresa Carte

 

I. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call – David Allison, Bred Bradford, EJ Cheshier, Jim Kasch, 

David Reggiani, Keith van den Broek 

C. Establishment of a Quorum 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

A. Guest Speaker 

B. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes per speaker). 

Speaker must give name and item on the agenda to which they are 

addressing. 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

A. HSB Meeting Minutes – 3/14/2012…………………………....Page 1 

B. HSB Meeting Minutes – 4/4/2012……………………………….Page 6 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE  

A. Administrator’s Report 

B. President’s Report 
 

 

C. City Council Report 

D. Finance Report  

i.    Balance Sheet as of 03/31/12…..……………………………………………………………..……………Page 10  

ii.   YTD Income Statement as of 03/31/12……………………………………………………..………….Page 11  

iii.  Three Year Comparative Income Statements (YTD as of 3/31/12)  
VII. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Appoint a representative to the Sound Alternatives Board 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (limited to 3 minutes per speaker)   

Members of the public are given the opportunity to comment on matters which are within the 

subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and are appropriate for discussion in an open session. 

X. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION* 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 

adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 

that person my require a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, city charter, or ordinance are required to be confidential; 4)  Matters 

involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an attorney or labor negotiator 

regarding the handling of specific legal matters or labor negotiations.



 

- 1 - 
 

Minutes 

Community Health Services Board 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

March 14, 2012 – 7:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

Kristin Carpenter called the HSB meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Board members present: 

David Allison (telephonically), Kristin Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, Jim Kasch, and Timothy 

Joyce. Absent: Nichole Hunt. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO), Randy Nichols, (Contract CFO), 

and Susan Humphrey-Barnett (Administrator, Area Operations, Providence).  

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS – None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None  

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Kasch, S/Joyce: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 4 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

 M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to approve the consent calendar. 

 

a.  Health Services Board meeting minutes from February 8, 2012 

 

 The word “charges” on page 2 of the minutes should be changed to “changes”. 

 

 M/Cheshier, S/Joyce: Move to approve the consent calendar as amended. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

 

A. Administrator’s Report 



 

- 2 - 
 

Sundby noted that the Lab Manager is speaking with Quest Diagnostics to determine 

rates associated with the Health Fair lab tests so that the cost of the tests to the public 

is sufficient to cover CCMC’s costs.  

 

With respect to staffing, Sundby reported that the Licensed Clinical Social Worker has 

left and our contract LCSW will be at the facility quarterly to meet Long Term Care 

regulations. Joyce asked how long the LCSW had been with CCMC and was there an 

impact related to moving expenses. Sundby responded that since the individual had 

only been at the facility for four months, the individual owes repayment of moving 

expenses. The final paycheck will be withheld and CCMC will seek repayment of the 

additional $1,000.  

 

One Medical Laboratory Technician has accepted a position. Providence will take over 

the Lab Management through an amendment to the services contract and will provide 

supervision through quarterly visits. Providence will be bringing in a team to initially get 

the lab up to speed. In response to Carpenter, Sundby clarified that the MLT is a lower 

position than a Medical Technician, who normally serves as a lab manager. 

 

B. Financial Statements 

 

Nichols reported that he has been onsite for 16 total days in the last month and a half. 

Key points related to the financials include the drop in patient days and the fact that 

CCMC has a vacant Long Term Care bed. 

 

Year-end cost reports have all been filed and accepted. CCMC should see a significant 

increase in Long Term Care revenue in July, but expects a cash-flow issue between now 

and then. 

 

Kasch noted that without cash, CCMC will be unable to write checks, and did the Board 

need to go back to Council for additional funds? Sundby responded that the Line-of-

Credit has been maxed out; CCMC is awaiting reimbursement to the Line-of-Credit of 

the $100K in capital items paid for from CCMC’s operating funds. The City has paid 

$200K as part of their line item budget and there is another $200K line item normally 

paid to CCMC in July. Joyce noted that the alternative to ask the City for an early 

distribution of the $200K would be fine, but what happens in the next couple of months. 

Sundby responded that funds have been this tight before and that the AP is not aging 

out too badly. It would be up to Providence whether to ask for more of not. Following 

discussion, Carpenter requested that the minutes reflect that the Health Services Board 

directs staff to request an early distribution of the $200K from the City.  



 

- 3 - 
 

 

Joyce asked why the inpatient care has declined. Sundby responded that CCMC had five 

local patients that frequently received services under acute care that had passed away. 

 

Carpenter requested clarification on the $1 million of contractual adjustments, charity, 

and bad debt. Sundby responded that CCMC had to write off the difference between 

the charge master adjusted rates (increases) and the Medicaid Long Term Care rate. 

 

The Board requested a reporting of budget-to-date included in future financials.  

 

C. President’s Report – None 

 

D. City Council Report 

 

Cheshier reported that Council is working on making the regulatory changes necessary 

for the hospital transition. Kasch reported that the Mayor discussed a grant for the City 

to build hospital-related housing. Allison reported that the City is progressing with the 

change to appoint members of City Council to the Health Services Board and that the 

roles will change. 

 

E. Providence Report 

 

Humphrey-Barnett reported that Theresa Carte, the new CEO, will be on the ground on 

April 8th. She presented Providence’s 120-day plan for Cordova, beginning with the need 

for a cohesive vision and direction. She further discussed the goal of reducing provider-

associated costs by increasing permanent hires. The third priority will be a complete HR 

review, to include CCMC’s wage scale and pay practices. Fourth, to hire a Critical Access 

Hospital-experienced CFO. Fifth priority is to review options for Electronic Health 

Records, and sixth will be a consultation to see what more CCMC can do for its 

residents. To date, Providence has completed Information Technology, Laboratory, 

Compliance, and Operations reviews. 

 

Humphrey-Barnett discussed the role of performance measures in Providence’s 

management philosophy, and added that the community would participate in a needs 

assessment every 3 years to help shape the services for Cordova’s needs. 

 

Joyce noted that from the past surveys, it appeared that CCMC was doing well. 

Humphrey-Barnett agreed, responding that focus areas for improvement will be 

activities, environment, and getting the residents engaged. 



 

- 4 - 
 

 

Other focus areas include EICU, a CT machine, signage, annual Charge Master updates, 

and a target of 45 days cash on hand, initially. This will increase to 150 days cash on 

hand. To get there, any revenue increases will be shared among four areas: the physical 

plant, personnel, technology, and putting money in the bank. 

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS   

 

 A. Resolution 2012-01 Check Signers 

 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to approve Resolution 2012-01, a Resolution of the Cordova 

Community Health Services Board of the Cordova Community Medical Center 

designating the representatives authorized for signing checks, non-check payroll tax 

payments, and cash transfers for Cordova Community Medical Center. 

 

 A vote was made on the main motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

 B. City of Cordova Resoultion 03-12-17 

 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to approve City of Cordova Resolution 03-12-17, a Resolution 

of the Cordova City Council authorizing the City Manager to sign an amendment to the 

agreement with the State of Alaska concerning participation of hospital employees in 

the Public Employees Retirement System of Alaska. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

   

 A. Frequency of HSB Meetings 

 

Kasch stated that it was his understanding that once Council becomes the Health 

Services Board, they would meet twice a year with Providence and asked how often the 

Advisory Board would meet. Humphrey-Barnett noted that in other communities, the 

Advisory Board meets monthly, with no less than 9 meetings per year. Following 

discussion of quorum requirements, potential for merging Sound Alternatives’ and 

Medical Center’s Advisory Boards, and membership/representation, directed that the 

Board would plan to continue scheduling monthly meetings, ensuring that at least nine 

meetings occur each year. 

 



 

- 5 - 
 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – None   

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

 

Allison  welcomed new CEO and thanked Stephen. Joyce noted that he expects to see a 

positive turnover over time. Cheshier noted the importance of moving forward with this 

event.   

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None   

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Joyce, S/Kasch: Move to adjourn the meeting. Carpenter declared the meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 



 

- 6 - 
 



 

- 7 - 
 

Minutes 

Community Health Services Board 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

April 4, 2012 – 7:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

David Allison called the HSB meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Board members present: 

David Allison, Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, Jim Kasch, David Reggiani, and Keith van den 

Broek. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO).  

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS – None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST – None  

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Reggiani, S/Kasch: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR – None 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE – None  

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS   

 

 A. Election of Vice President and Secretary 

 

M/Reggiani, S/Van Den Broek: Move to nominate E.J. Cheshier as Vice President. 

 

M/Reggiani, S/Van Den Broek: Move to close nominations. 

 

  A vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

 A vote was made on the main motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 



 

- 8 - 
 

 

M/Bradford, S/Van Den Broek: Move to nominate David Reggiani as Secretary. 

 

 M/Van Den Broek, S/Kasch: Move to close nominations. 

 

A vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

 A vote was made on the main motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

 B. Resolution 2012-02 Check Signers 

 

Allison recommended adding David Reggiani to the signer resolution.  

 

M/Bradford, S/Van Den Broek: Move to approve Resolution 2012-02, a Resolution of 

the Cordova Community Health Services Board of the Cordova Community Medical 

Center designating the representatives authorized for signing checks, non=check payroll 

tax payments, and cash transfers for Cordova Community Medical Center as amended.  

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

 C. Future Meeting Date and Time 

 

Allison noted that the bylaws require the HSB to meet once per month and 

recommended that the Board meet prior to one of the monthly scheduled Council 

meetings. Allison further recommended meeting on the first Wednesday of each 

month, as the second Council meeting of the month is often cancelled. Allison also 

noted that previously, the HSB passed a motion to meet no less than 9 months of the 

year, which contradicts the bylaws.  

 

M/Reggiani, S/Bradford: Move to hold Health Services Board meetings on the first 

Wednesday of each month, prior to the City Council meeting. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 6 yeas. -  0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS – None   

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION – None   

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – None   



 

- 9 - 
 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None   

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Reggiani, S/Bradford: Move to adjourn the meeting. Allison declared the meeting 

adjourned at 7:06 pm. 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 



 

- 10 - 
 



 

- 11 - 
 

 


